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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their Annual Report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of
the charitable company for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The Annual Report serves
the purposes of both a Trustees' Report, and a Directors’ report and strategic report under company
law.

The academy trust operates five {2022: three) Special Academies in the Birmingham, Warwickshire,
Walsall and Coventry localities. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 870 (2022: 610) and
had a roll of 865 (2022: 550} in the school census of Autumn 2023.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a Company limited by guarantee and is an exempt charity. The Charitable
Company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the
Academy Trust.

The Trustees of Thrive Education Partnership are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the
purposes of company law. The Charitable Company operates as Thrive Education Partnership.

The academies within the trust are known as Calthorpe Academy, Kingsbury Academy, The
Warwickshire Academy, Corley Academy and Mary Elliot Academy.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative details on page 3.

Members’ liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable
Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trusteaes’ indemnities

The Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased by the Academy Trust to cover the liability of
the Trustees arising from negligent acts, errors or commissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust
business. The [imit of this indemnity is £5,000,000.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The management of the Academy trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co
opted under the terms of the Trust deed. The Trustees are directors of the Charitable Company for the
purposes of the Companies Act 2006 and Trustees for the purposes of the charity legistation.

The term of office for any Trustee shall be four years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the
Chief Executive Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee
may be re-appointed or re-elected. The Trustees who were in office at 1 September 2023 and who
served during the year are listed on page 3.

The members (listed on page 3) of the Academy Trust are entitled to appoint 12 Trustees. The Chief
Executive Officer shall be a Trustee. Additionally, a minimum of 2 parent Trustees shall be appointed
by the Trustees via an election process, or directly, should the number of parents standing for election
be less than the number of vacancies. However, parent trustees are only required if there is no
provision for Parent Governors on Local Governing boards.

Where recruitment of new Trustees is required, the Academy advertises this on its website, using the
Academy Ambassadors network and via letters home to parents. The Academy Trustees and members
also use their extensive networks in order i¢ encourage applications for potential specific new Trustee
positions.

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where
required, induction will include training on educational, legal, safeguarding and financial matters. All
new Trustees are given the opportunity of a tour of the Academies, have the chance to meet with staff
and students and are provided with copies of key documents, such as policies, procedures, accounts,
budgets, plans and other documents they need to undertake their role as Trustees.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees {cont'd)
As there are expected to be only a small number of new Trustees each year, induction is generally
carried out informally and will be tailored specifically to the individual.

Organisational structure
At 31 August 2023, the Academy Trust comprised the following individual academies:

1 Calthorpe Academy

2 Kingsbury Academy

3 The Warwickshire Academy (opened 1 March 2022)

4 Corley Academy (opened 1 November 2022)

5 Mary Elliot Academy

Thrive Education Parinership was set up with 2 management structure to support its education brief.
The Trust's management structure consists of four levels: the Members, the Trustees, Local Boards
and the Senior Leadership Teams.

The Trust members set the operational strategy of the trust. The Trustees are responsible for setting
general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring its financial and operational
performance and making strategic decisions about the direction of the Trust, approving major items of
expenditure and making senior staff appointments. Local Governing bodies and Senior Leadership
teams have delegated authority to manage day to day school operations within the academies within
the trust and this lies within the Scheme of Delegation.
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The full trustee body meets on a half-termly basis. The local Governing body committees meet on a
half termly basis.

There are 3 Sub-committees of the Board of Trustees as of 31 August 2023:
® Finance, Audit and Risk

® Quality of Education & Welfare

® Personnel

Each committee has its own term of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to it.
The following decisions are reserved for the full Board of Trustees:

® To consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the Academy Trust and its
committee structure;

® To appoint or remove the Chair and/or Vice Chair
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TRUSTEES® REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Organisational structure (cont'd)

The trust continues to seek appropriate opportunities for expansion and is a DfE approved sponsor
academy; the trustees have implemented a commitiee structure to improve the efficiency of
Govemnance, along with ensuring that the trust is set up appropriately for MAT growth.

The Trust Chief Executive Officer performs the role of Chief Accounting Officer.

The Trustees have approved a financial procedures manual/scheme of delegation, which clearly sets
out the level of financial authority delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, Principals and other
members of staff.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Performance management and pay of the Local Headteachers is determined by the CEO of Thrive
during their annual performance management review. The Academy Leadership Team are subject to
performance management by the Academy Headteacher, who sets annual objectives and reviews
performance against those objectives at the end of each year. The academy leadership team
remuneration (including the Headteacher) is based upon nationally recognised School Teachers Pay
scales, which are reviewed by the trustees and CEQO from time-to-time to ensure that these scales
remain appropriate. All key personnel remuneration changes are communicated to the Trustees.

No Trustees (other than the MAT CEQ) are in receipt of any remuneration, other than for the refund of
out-of- pocket expenses incurred in the line of performing their duties on behalf of the Trust.

Executive pay for the CEO of Thrive is based upon annual performance management appraisal by the
Members, who utilise the expertise of an external consultant for this purpose. Any pay recommendation
thereafter is forwarded to the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, who act as the Executive Pay
Committee.

Trade union fagcility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year
Fuli-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facllity time

Percentage of time

0% 2
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% .
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill 17,856,815

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time ~%
Paid trade union activities -
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours .

Related parties and other connected charitles and organisations

Thrive Education Partnership wound up its wholly owned subsidiary company, Calthorpe Academy
Transport Services Limited on 15 February 2022 which was set up as a trial to run a school transport
service. There was no activity within Calthorpe Transport Services during 2022/23. A member of Thrive
Education Partnership was also a Director of Calthorpe Transport Services Limited.

Calthorpe Academy continues to engage with the Co-operative Trust, but no longer in any official
capacity.

Employee involvement and employment of the disabled

The policy that has been applied in the year for giving full and fair consideration to applications for
employment made by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities.

NN
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

The policy that has been applied in the year for continuing the employment of, and arranging
appropriate training for, employees who have become disabied during their period of employment.

The policy that has been applied in the year otherwise for the training, career development and
promotion of people with disabilities.

The Group and the Academy Trust have implemented a number of detailed policies in relation to all
aspects of personnel matters including:

® Equal opportunities policy & Volunteers' policy
® Health & safety policy
In accordance with the Group and the Academy Trust's equal opportunities policy, the Group and the

Academy Trust have long-established fair employment practices in the recruitment, selection, retention
and training of disabled staff.

Full details of these policies are available from the Academy Trust's offices.
OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

TRUSTEES VISION
“A community built on improving life chances for its young people within a culture of challenge,
high expectations and values-based decision making”

The vision of Thrive Education Partnership {TEP) is to continue to teach our learners ‘the skills they
need for the lives they want’. We ensure that our curriculum is diverse, personalised and enriched to
meet the very individual needs of our learners. TEP is currently comprised of three academies, and two
satellite provisions, working across three local authorities — Birmingham, Coventry and Warwickshire. It
is expected that following Head Teacher Advisory Panel approvement, a second Coventry school will

join TEP on 1* November 2022 — The Corley Centre.

The Corley Centre is graded as a good school and currently educates 135 secondary age children and
young people. All leamers have an Educational, Heaith and Care Plan.

TEP will continue to develop and adapt our curriculum as the needs and aspirations of our children and
young people change. We seek to ensure that we accommodate our learners in a safe, highly enriched,
and vibrant learning environment where everybody's voice is heard, and the learner is at the centre of
everything we do. Our activities are predicated upon the following aims, values, and development
priorities.

TEPS’s activities are predicated upon the following aims and values:

Aims:

To challenge and inspire pupils to gain the highest standards in a vibrant, well- resourced and
personalised learning environment.

® To encourage and inspire pupils to develop lively enquiring minds, enjoy learning and develop
independent creative ideas to achieve their highest aspirations.

® To provide an educational environment that uses new technology as a mechanism to support
learning, aid communication and raise standards.

® To ensure that self-evaluation is an ingrained aspect of practice for all staff and pupils.

® To encourage and prepare pupils and staff to become active & healthy citizens of the Academy
Trust and the wider community.

® To work in a collaborative partnership with local, national and international organisations (such as
business, industry and educational institutions), to share resources and expertise and to learn from
them.

® Ensuring the SEND Legislation is truly in action: placing parents, families, children and young
people at the heart of its decision-making.

Values:

® TEP believes that all members of the Trust have a responsibility to act in a moral and respectful
manner towards themselves, others and their environment, showing care, consideration,
cooperation and respect for all.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Values: (cont'd)

® The Trust believe that all members have the right to be safe, supported, valued, and cared for at all
times.

® TEP believes that all members of the Trust should be encouraged to develop their skills, expand
their knowledge, embrace challenge, and reach their full potential; believing in encouraging pupils
and staff to take pride in their achievements and to celebrate their success.

® TEP support partnerships between pupils, parents and Academies to achieve high quality discipline
and leaming.

® TEP value all our staff and pupils, recognising that they deserve the highest respect and quality of
resources in promoting achievement of aspiraticnal targets.

® The Trust believe in being fair, honest and compassionate in alf our work as a school.

TEP believes in a model of early intervention including supporting families in the home. TEP believes in
developing a multi-agency, collaborative culture to supporting families and their children.

TEP continues to grow in a managed and strategic way; building long term sustainable foundations to
the educational establishments that it serves. TEP has established a highly effective central team that
allows its settings to focus on their main purpose; educating chilkdren and young people. TEP is
committed to only take on new educational establishments, following the consolidation and improved
performance of our initially adopted provisions.

The MAT has a strong commitment to raising standards, achievements, and attainment for all its
children and young people. It is committed to improving standards of teaching and learning through
supporting a self-sustaining culture of aspiration for educational excellence and the sharing of
expertise, talent, innovative practice, and resources across all cur educational settings.

Academy Ofsted Grade Date of Inspection

Calthorpe Academy Good 17/11/2023

Kingsbury Academy ' Requires Improvement 30/06/2022

The Warwickshire Academy | Ungraded Ungraded {new free school)

Corley Academy Good 21/11/2017 {pre-conversion)

Mary Hiiot Academy Inadequate 02/03/2022 (pre-conversion)
Public benefit

The Academy Trust aims to advance for the public benefit education in the Cities of Birmingham and
Coventry and the surrounding area, offering a broad curricuum and an excellent education
environment for its pupils. The Academy Trust aiso allows use of its facilities for recreational and other
leisure time occupation for the community at large in the interests of social welfare and with the interest
of improving the life of that community.

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the Charity Commission general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or
duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy Trust's aims and objectives
and in planning its future activities.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The vision for TEP is for all its children and young people to develop the skills for the life they want; to
achieve their ultimate aspirations and to feel an integral part of their own communities. This is achieved
through the researched/designed strategic implementation of innovative, evidence-based educational
and pastoral strategies. We work closely with several Academics and SEND Professionals across
various sectors including Universities, The British Institute for Leamning Difficulties and Restraint
Reduction Network (of which we represent the national SEND sector).
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 {cont'd)

STRATEGIC REPORT (cont'd)

The Trust continues to work to its strategic approach of cross-sector collaboration, a model of specialist
support (including therapies), inclusivity and integration. TEP believes all children and young people
should be provided with the very best opportunity to play an independent role within their own
communities, develop the skills they require and attain the qualifications they need to live the life they
want, recognising the very specific and individual needs of its children and young people.

TEP is committed to providing a learning journey that develops the ‘skills for the life cur pupils want’.
The Trust provides education and life opportunities to ali of its children and young people. TEP ensures
that each curriculum is diverse, personalised and enriched to meet the very individual needs of its
pupils. It will continue to develop and adapt as the needs and aspirations of its children and young
people change. TEP strides to ensure that it accommodates its pupils in a safe, highly enriched and
vibrant learning environment where everybody’s voice is heard, and the pupil is at the centre of
everything decision that is made.

TEP and its associated Academies and wider provisions provide equal opporiunities to allow
experience of a curriculum which is broad, balanced, relevant, and reflects cultural diversity. The
curriculum and creative means of delivery reflects the Trusts’ commitment to access and inclusion for
all its pupils.

The Trust continues to operate a satellite unit based within a mainstream setting to accommodate
pupils who are able to access a mainstream curriculum and social environment. Trust staff are based
in the mainstream setting to support learning for both mainstream and pupils with special needs. They
deliver GCSEs and accredited study programmes through a wide range of awarding bodies.

it is an approach based on the pupil or student further improving their communicative and reasoning

ability, as well as continuing to acquire early learning skills. The curriculum promotes the development

of thinking skills, creative & expressive learning and is designed to be developmentally appropriate. it

enables all pupils to take part in activities that are engaging, meaningful to them and provide relevant

and challenging goals that uitimately benefit their lives.

Safeguarding, Achievements and Performance

TEP commissions external safeguarding reviews for all its academies; these take part annually and any

actions are actioned. These provide LGB’s and the Trust Board with external validation of the quality of

safeguarding processes and procedures.

Staff Welfare

The Trust continues to develop best practice towards the welfare of its staff. TEP subscribes to an

external supplier of welfare management strategies that all staff are able to access including medical

diagnosis and treatments, counselling, and health related programmes.

Principal Risks

The principal risks and uncertainties are stipuiated within a Trust-wide “Business Continuity Plan & Risk

Resister”. This is regularly reviewed by key stakeholders to ensure robust intelligence and reflect

changing landscapes.

Plans for Future Periods

The Academy Trust strives to continually improve levels of attainment for all pupils, equipping them with

the qualifications, skills, and character to follow their chosen pathway, whether it is into further and

higher education or employment, as well as promoting the continued professional development of its

staff.

The Trust's priority plans for future periods are:

® Ensure that all mandatory safeguarding policies and procedures are continually met, including safer
recruitment, and embedding safeguarding into the curriculum

® Ensure that the curriculum offer is diverse, personalised, enriched and regularly reviewed to meet
the needs and aspirations of our learners, particularly those learners with most complex needs

® Develop a 5-Year Trust Strategic Development Plan to inform future growth and ensure values
driven decision making
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
Plans for Future Periods (cont'd)

To continue to develop the Academy’s learning environment, in order to support and enhance the
Academy’s curriculum offer

To develop curriculum leadership, ensuring effective monitoring delivery of their subjects with a
specific focus on feedback, accessibility of curriculum and accountability

To continue to develop and expand the Board of Trustees/Members through ongoing skills analysis,
informed CPD and targeted recruitment

Further improve the quality of teaching and ensuring it is consistently good or better, ensuring all
students make expected or better than expected progress

To develop our mental health strategy, assessment, and staffing capacity in order to support
learner/staff mental health and resilience

Develop our learning community by, growing our Multi Academy Trust, through our membership via
BSSCT and through our Naticnhal Support School designation

The priority plans have been clearly articulated through a Trust-wide five-year strategy plan; fully
ratified by the Board of Trustees. TEP has identified five key strategic aims and progress will be
updated in future reports:

Strategic alm Ratlonale

TEP will be recognised as — .
a SEND Sector Lead in health difficulties, and physical disabilities. Many CYP will have general

Inclusion & Therapeutic  [therapeutic needs and a significant cohort will have specific therapeutic
Support

TEP is a specialist MAT and many of its CYP have complex needs; these
can include sensory processing impairments, social and emotional mental

provision stipulated in Section F of their Education, Health & Care Plans.

Lecal Authority SEND budgets are under increasing strain and the
therapeutic provision is limited at best; TEP recognises that it must do all it
lcan do to fulfil those needs.

Inclusion is at the heart of SEND provision and - Special educational needs
and disability code of practice: 0 to 25 years Statutory guidance for
organisations which work with and support children and young people who
have special educational needs or disabilities- Department for Education.
TEP has a legal and mgral duty to ensure equity across its academies and
strive for a fully inclusive environment and conditions for all.

TEP will become an TEP is fully committed to becoming an increasingly environmentally
environmentally organisation. There are a number of benefits not only for the environment
responsible organisation  |but also for TEP as a public service organisation. These benefits include:

e Developing a positive reputation that will assist the recruitment and
retention of those people who are committed to similar principles

e Being more attractive to staff and business partners who value
environmentally sustainable practices

e Creating educationally innovative practices that positively affect the
environment and lead to others following suit

¢ The reduction of vehicle operating costs by using renewable energy
sources

® Savings from becoming more energy efficient (e.g., less water and
electricity usage)

® The money saved on waste removal through recycling and reducing
waste
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
Pians for Future Periods {cont'd)

e Reducing expenditure on energy consumpticn through increased
insulation and other thermai loss reduction processes

e The ability to attract more grants through planning for changes to the
climate, and reducing reliance on older, more expensive types of
energy

TEP pupits will achieve TEP is fully aware that the wark and life-chances of children and young
outstanding outcomes in  Jpeople with additional needs is severely impacted; the statistics

independence and ¢ 5.1% of adults with a learning disability known to their local authority in

employability England are in paid work (NHS Digital, 2021)

e The proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid work varies
greatly from region to region

® London (7%) and the Southeast (6.9%) have the highest proportion of
adults with a iearning disability known to their local authority in paid
employment, followed by Yorkshire and the Humber {6.3%; NHS
Digital, 2020)

e In England, a higher proportion of men with a learning disability known
to their local authority (6.2%) are in paid employment than women with
a learning disability known to their local authority (4.8%; NHS Digital,
2020)

Independence and the opportunity to make choices is a fundamentai
human right; TEP understands that many if its children and young people
may not be able to live completely independently however, the Trust
recognises the importance of ensuring that all its pupils are able to live as
independently as possible. This can only be achieved through providing
real-life experiences alongside classroom-hased leaming experiences. The
Trust places a significant emphasis on the importance of generalising skills
and knowledge in a functional manner.

TEP will be recognised as |Good staff wellbeing is essential for cultivating a mentally healthy school,
a SEND sector lead in staff|for retaining and motivating staff and for promoting pupil wellbeing and
& pupils wellbeing attainment.

Wellbeing is all about our holistic health, including the physical and
emotional. When we have good levels of wellbeing, we feel that life is in
balance and that we can generaily cope weli. We feel motivated and
engaged, we're resilient and able to deal effectively with daily troubles, as
well as 'bounce back’ from life’s challenges.

As education staff deal with a multitude of different tasks and demands, it
is important that everyone is given the right emotional and practical support
so they can, in turn support their pupils.

In addition to having a positive impact on colleagues and pupils, staff
wellbeing can improve performance and job satisfaction, which can lead to
reduced turnover. It can also help reduce absence, increase productivity,
and promote staff engagement.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
Plans for Future Periods (cont'd)

TEP will be a national
beacon for Research &
Development

There are a wide range of benefits to research and developing practice in
educational settings. This could include improvement thraugh action
research or, more broadly, gaining understanding and knowledge on
themes of interest and relevance. TEP is committed to implementing
evidence-based practice and pedagogy across its academies. As research
becomes embedded into practice the following benefits can be observed:

e Help find solutions to particular issues

e Theoretical underpinning of knowledge, skills and understanding

e Connect with sources of information and network of professionai
support

e Clarify purposes, processes and priorities when introducing change —
for example, to curriculum, pedagogy ore assessment

e Improve understanding of your professional and policy context,
organisational, local, and nationally

¢ Develop agency, influence, self-efficacy, and voice within TEP
academies

The Trust's five focus priorities {3-5 years) ore:
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 {cont'd)

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies within the financial statements.

Key performance indicators 2023 2022
Delegated High Needs funding % of total revenue grant income 92% 91%
Other funding % of total revenue grant income 8% 9%
Teaching staff costs as % of GAG/High Needs funding 34% 35%
Non-Teaching staff costs as % of GAG/High Needs funding 56% 50%
Total staff costs as % of GAG/High Needs funding 90% 87%

Delegated funding has remained high as a proportion of overall income and this is expected to remain
constant in 2023/24.

Staffing costs have increased as a proportion of total delegated high needs fundingfincome. This is
significantly due to the non-teaching pay awards for both 2022/23 and 2023/24 which have increased
higher than the top up increases in the year and with the teachers pay award being only partly funded
for 2023/24 is expected to rise again in 2023/24.

The trustees are concerned at the level of these unfunded/partly unfunded inflationary pay awards,
nationally agreed in late 2023. In the case of Non-Teaching staff, the pay award is retrospective and
results in an average 7-8% annual uplift in staffing costs with effect from April 2023. Although the Trust
had budgeted broadly in line with the pay awards for 2023/2024 the impact has significantly impacted
each academy’s budget within the Trust. The Department for Education is presently stating that historic
funding settlements are sufficient to cover this additional cost, but that is not the case.

The Local Government Pension Fund is reporting a significant reduction in the liability level for each of
the entities within the Trust (See Note 29 of the Financial Statements). This year's actuarial valuations
made under FRS 102 show a decrease in the liability of £4.268m, to £3.307m.

Financial review

The vast majority of the Academy Trust's income is received from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency ('ESFA') and from Local Authority's in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted
to particular purposes. The grants received during the year ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure of these grants are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy Trust also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA and other organisations |
funders and these are shown as restricted fixed asset funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.
The balance of the restricted fixed asset fund is reduced by the depreciation charges on the assets
acquired using these funds.

For the year ended 31 August 2023, the Academy Trust's fotal income (excluding transfers on
conversion and capital income) was £20,965,000 (2022: £14,265,000) while the total expenditure
(excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was £20,694,000 (2022:
£14,021,000), resulting in a net revenue surplus excluding transfers on conversion for the year of
£271,000 (2022: £504,000).

The balance of reserves at 31 August 2023, excluding the restricted fixed asset funds and LGPS
liability fund was £3,254,000 (2022: £2,177,000).

The net book value of fixed assets at 31 August 2023 is £22,428,000 (2022: £11,871,000), which
includes the vaiue of land and buildings of £21,914,000 (2022: £11,334,000), depreciation charges for
the period of £1,448,000 (2022: £1,250,000) and an impairment of £Nil (2022: £2,511,000). The fixed
assets held by the Academy Trust are used exclusively for providing education and associated support
services to the pupils of the Trust.
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Financial review (cont'd)

Included within the Academy's balance sheet at year end is a defined benefit pension scheme liability
of £3,307,000 (2022: £7,575,000), which arises from the deficit in the Local Government Pension
Scheme ("LGPS") that is attributable to the Academies. Further details regarding the deficit in the
LGPS at 31 August 2023 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included the Financial Procedures
Policies and Manual, which lays out the framework for the Academy Trust's financial management,
including financial responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, Chief Executive Officer, managers, budget
holders and other staff, as well as the delegated authorities for spending. The other financial policies
reviewed and adopted during the period included Charges and Lettings, Asset Management and
Insurance.

Reserves
it is Academy policy to aim to maintain a reserve level of 7.5% of annual income. Owing to the above

net gains listed, the reserve level at the end of 2022/23 was 15% of 2022/23 income.

The academy trust will lock to ensure that it maximises value for money by investing some level of
reserves in identified projects which will improve the experience and outcomes for our young people,
while also making sure that sufficient reserves are held against future unknowns.

We are aware that, until Government confirm that inflationary pay increases will be fully funded, there is
a risk of significant budgetary pressure on staffing costs and in turn this will impact on reserve levels in
the short term.

Caution is needed before making any decisions in light of these current uncertainties.

Reserves policy
The trustees Finance Committee believe that reserves should provide sufficient working capital to cover

delays between spending and receipt of grants and also allow for unexpected situations such as urgent
maintenance work. The trustees ideally aim to maintain reserves of 7.5% of delegated funding as an
appropriate contingency against unknown future funding settlements.

As at 31 August 2023 the academy had Total funds carried forward of £22,321,000 (2022 :
£6,490,000), of which £3,254,000 (2022: £2,177,000) were expendable reserves consisting of cash and
other reserves of the academy trust, which are available for the academy to fulfil its objects. The
majority of our true cash reserves have been retained and are from predecessor school funds.

Under Accounting Standard FRS102 it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local
Government Pension Scheme that is provided for non teaching staff to a specific restricted reserve. As
at 31 August 2023 the deficit on this reserve amounted to £3,307,000 (2022: £7,575,000 deficit).

Investment policy

The investment policy during the past 12 months continues to have been based upon considering short
term treasury deposits (3 months to one year), which would be made based upon cash flow projections.
The requirement to avoid any significant risk with academy cash means that investment opportunity
remains limited. Increasing rates of return on cash investments have led to a decision to seek some
level of return and it is envisaged that we shall continue to invest on this basis during 2023/24.

The Finance Trustees have been expioring the potential for alternative investment vehicles for the
future and it is expected that they will instigate investment in the 2023/24 financial year.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, especially in the
operational areas, such as teaching, health & safety, safeguarding and school trips, and in relation to
the control of finances and strategical development of the Trust. They have introduced systems,
including operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk and have
agreed a Risk Management Strategy and Risk Management Plan, which incorporates a Risk Register.

Where significant financial risk still remains, the Trustees have ensured the Academy Trust has
adequate insurance cover in place. The Risk Management Plan is constantly reviewed in light of any
new information and formally reviewed annually.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy Trust are as follows:
Educational

The continuing success of the Academy Trust is dependent on continuing to attract pupil applicants in
sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards across all key stages. To mitigate
this risk, the Trustees ensure that pupil success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed,
with corrective actions embedded at an early stage, and that relationships and partnerships with
parents, the local community and other organisations and groups are maintained and are effective in
producing a cohesive and supportive community.

Safeguarding and child protection

The Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection
and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and
discipline.

Financial

The Academy Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA
and lLocal Authority. In the year, approximately 92% of the Academy Trust's income (excluding amounts
transferred on conversion from the Local Authority or amounts transferred from other academies joining
the Trust) was ultimately Government funded. Whilst this level is expected to continue, there is no
assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue
at the same levels or on the same terms, particularly in light continuing changes in to the National
Funding Formula for schools.

Significant increases in employment costs continue nationally, including an average 7-8% inflationary
increase for Non-Teaching and 6-7% for Teaching staff. This was announced in Autumn 2023 and will
place significant pressure on the Trust's financial position and its ability to deliver balanced budgets in
the future. On top of unfunded increases in Energy costs, this risk will hopefully be mitigated by top up
funding increases from April 2024.

The Trustees examine the financial health of the Academy Trust formally every term, reviewing
performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of regular update reports at all full
Trustees and Finance and Resources Committee meetings.

Estate
The Trustees’ acknowledge their respensibility to ensure that the trusts estate portfolio is safe, well
maintained and complies with relevant reguiations.

With the current increased number of sites which vary in age and condition the trustees’ are aware of
the potential risk to pupils, staff and visitors to these sites if the need for maintenance is not regularly
assessed and undertaken.

In order to ensure everyone’s safety the Trust has undertaken surveys of all of the sites to identify any
failings and to ensure these are addressed on a timely basis.

Going forward it is the intention of the Trust to employ an in house surveyor to ensure all sites are
regularly assessed and to provide to the Trustees reports as to the condition of the sites along with a
rolling programme of actions to ensure that compliance with all relevant reguiations is met and an
improvement plan is put in place for the benefit of the pupils and the staff.
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Staffing

The success of the Academy Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff so the Trustees monitor and
review policies and procedures to ensure continued development and fraining of staff as well as
ensuring there is clear succession planning. Changes in the labour market continue to mean that it is
difficult to attract new and retain existing staff. The academy trust continues fo review policy in this area
to seek to gain a competitive edge in the labour market.

Failures In governance and / or management

The risk in this area arises from the potential failure fo effectively manage the Academy Trust's
finances, internal controis, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns etc. The
Trustees continue to review and ensure appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks,
which includes those relating to fraud and mismanagement of funds.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds

The Academy Trust has retained MLG Associates as internal auditor to perform additional checks and
to perform a program of work aimed at checking and reviewing the financial systems and records as
required by the Academy Trust Handbook. All finance staff receive training to keep them up to date with
financial practice requirements and to develop their skills in this area.

At the balance sheet date, the Academy Trust had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or
debtors where there would be a significant effect on the Academy Trust's liquidity.

The Trustees recognise that the LGPS deficit represents a significant potential liability to the Academy
Trust. The actuarial valuation for 2022/23 shows a reduced liability level for the Pension fund across the
Trust. The Trustees consider the Academy Trust is able to meet its known annual contribution
commitments for the foreseeable future, therefore the risk from this liability is deemed to be minimised.

Fundraising
The Academy Trust has not undertaken any material fundraising activities during the year ended 31
August 2023.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
The Academy Trust and its Trustees do not act as Custodian Trustees of any other charity.

The Academy does however hold Post 16 Bursary Funds on behalf of the ESFA, which are distributed
to students as required and in line with the terms and conditions of the funds.

Disclosure of information to auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

| there is no relevant audit infermation of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and
I that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor
UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP are in office as auditors and will be proposed for reappointment
in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees,
as the company directors, on 13 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Thrive Education
Partnership Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However,
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in
the funding agreement between Thrive Education Partnership Trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in
the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the
year.

Trustee attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Trustee R Chapman, CEQ 5

J Davey, Chair

P Smart

D Pawlowski-Andrews
N Lagan

P Haggett

A Tenn

L Bennett

S Stewart

G Tyier

L Pearcey
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Conflict of Interest

It is generally Thrive policy not to permit Trustees with conflicts of interest onto our board. In the rare
circumstances where this is may not be the case, the Board of Trustees are required to complete annual
declarations of interest in order to inform the register of business interests. Additicnally, each meeting
requires Trustees to declare any interests. At present the Trust has only one trustee with an extremely
minor Suppiier relationship, from which they can and do derive no personal interest. The individual in this
case has no involvement in the process of deciding whether to continue with this supply, or the
consgquent procurement decision relating to a very small annual subscription.

Governance review

The Board of Trustees review the Trust's governance structure each year and evaluate its impact and
effectiveness. The Board of Trustees has a wide range of skills that contribute to the successful
governance of the Trust and are satisfied that the current structure in place is appropriate and effective for
the Trust.

Our trustee board self-evaluation process is ongoing and the board are taking care to identify gaps and
direct recruitment to specified areas of need.

The addition of the new schools has informed the plan for setting up Local Governing Bodies for each
schoo! within the trust.
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The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-Committee of the Board of Trustees. lis purpose is to
provide oversight, guidance and assistance to the Board of Trustees on all matters related t¢ finance and
resources of the Academy Trust, where its purpose is to maintain an oversight of the Trust's governance,
risk management, internal control and value for money framework.

The key areas of focus for the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee are to:

® Oversee the management of the financial resources of the trust with the aim of securing the best
possible cutcomes for our leamers.

®  Receive, review and recommend the annual budget of the trust to the Full Board for approval.

®  Oversee ongoing budget prediction /projections via termly analysis of the approved budget against
actual/predicted expenditure to ensure effective management of all financial resources available.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
P Haggett 2 3
R Chapman 3 3
ATenn 2 2
P Smart 3 3

Review of Value for Money
As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the
taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, Iincluding the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The
Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

®  Successfully applying for TCAF funding allowing the trust to increase the services delivered by the
central team across a variety of areas including finance, business development and govemance.
TCAF funding was also utilised to fund the secondment of staff from the academies to the central
team to strengthen our support to our schools.

®  TCAF funding was additionally used to build an estates database allowing the accounting officer to
have insight into the state of the trust's estate to ensure it is safe, well maintained and complies with
regulations.

®  Successfully continuing to build a high quality value driven Multi Academy Trust which is attractive to
other schools. This has resulted in numerous enquiries from schools considering academisation,
including Baginton Fields and Castle Wood in Coventry, who have applied to join our Trust in Spring
2024,

®  This work also helps us to recruit, retain and develop the best staff and opportunities

®  Holding and hosting a Special School conference which was open to a large number of schools. This
conference included sharing some of the very best practice in our sector. This ultimately leads to a
contribution to the improved education of young people within and beyond our own Trust.

The purposes of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore, only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in
place in Thrive Education Partnership Trust for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year from 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. In particular, it includes:

®  comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

®  regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

®  setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

®  clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

®  identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has continued to buy-in an internal audit service from MLG Education Services
Limited, to perform additional enhanced assurance checks.

This option has been chosen because the Trust wants to be able to rely on the highest level of scrutiny
possible, overseen by professionals who are best placed to perform the high-quality testing and therefore,
reassure our Trustees and anyone associated with Thrive Education Partnership of the effectiveness of
our financial management.

The reviewer's role inciudes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks
on the Academy Trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current
period included:

®  Testing of monthly payroll and related procedures hd Checking bank reconciliations
®  Checking of purchasing procedures b Review of control accounts
®  Ensuring income is accounted for correctly d Reimbursed expenses

®  Energy procurement and usage

On a termly basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit and risk committee qn
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities.

On an annual basis the reviewer prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and
assess year on year progress.

The reviewer has delivered their program of work during the ended 31 August 2023 as planned.

Review of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year ended 31 August 2023 the review has been informed by:

®  the work of the internal auditor;
the work of the external auditor;

®  the school resource management self-assessment tool

® the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the finance and risk committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.
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Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2023 and signed on their
behalf by:

J Davey R Chapman
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer




THRIVE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP 22

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
AUGUST 2023

As accounting officer of Thrive Education Partnership | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Trust Board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, including for
estates safety and management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the
Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

1 confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022.

| confirm that there are no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance
discovered to date which should be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA. If any instances are
identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------

R Chapman
Accounting Officer
13 December 2023
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The trustees (who act as govemors of Thrive Education Partnership and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report
and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the trustees are required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

® observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023,;

. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Academy will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been
applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infermation
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 13 December 2023 and signed on its behalf
by:

J Davey
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THRIVE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Thrive Education Partnership (the charitable company) for
the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet and
the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statement, including significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been appiied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the
Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

® give a true and fair view of the state of the Thrive Education Partnership affairs as at 31 August
2023 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including income and expenditure,
for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

L have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Thrive Education
Partnership ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financiai
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information
contained within the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

. the information given in the trustees' report (incorporating the Strategic Report, and the Trustees
Report)} for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

® the trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report. We have
nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:

® adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

® certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 23, the trustees are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the Thrive Education
Partnership ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the
charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:

Based on our understanding of the Thrive Education Partnership and the industry in which it operates, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the acts by the
Thrive Education Partnership, which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial
statements. We alsc considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation
of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP 2019 and Academies
Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that
the principal risks were related to inflated revenue and the Leaming Today, Leading Tomorrow's net
income for the year.
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Audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supporting documentation, review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, including
correspondence with the Education and Skills Funding Agency review of comrespondence with legal
advisors, enquiries of management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the
financial statements, and testing of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the
trustees that represented a risk of material misstatement due tc fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate conceaiment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the academy trust's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THRIVE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Thrive Education Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Thrive Education Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Thrive Education Partnership’s and the Thrive Education
Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Malcolm Winston

Senior Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, Statutory Auditor
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

13 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THRIVE
EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AND SKILLS AGENCY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 06 July 2023 and further to the
requirements of the Education Funding Agency (EFA) as inciuded in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about
whether, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by the academy
trust during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solely to Thrive Education Partnership and the ESFA in accordance with our
engagement letter. Our review has been undertaken so that we might state to the govermning body
and the ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than Thrive Education Partnership and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Thrive Education Partnership's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Thrive Education Partnership
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 23 March 2015, and the
Academy Trust Handbook extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our
profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with
cur engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies: Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023.
We report to you whether, anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the
period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External
Auditors and Reporting Accountants issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express
a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and

propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

* Analytical review of the academy trusts general acfivities are within the academy trusis
framework of authorities;

¢ Consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity,
propriety and compliance;

* Review of the general control environment for the academy trust on financial statements and
on regularity;
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THRIVE
EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AND SKILLS AGENCY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Approach (con't)

* Sample testing of expenditure transactions to ensure the activity is permissible within the
academy trusts framework of authority;

* Confirmation that a sample of expenditure has been appropriately authorised in accordance
with the academy trust's delegated authorities;

* Formal representations obtained from the board of trustees and the accounting officer
acknowledging the responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and
regulations specific to the authorising framework;

* Confirmation that any extra contractual payments such as severance and compensation
payments have been appropriately authorised;

* Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or
trustees;

* Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;

* Review of related party transactions for connections with the principal/strategic business
manager or trustees;

* Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the academy
trust's charitable objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to
31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

13 December 2023
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
(Including income and Expenditure Account)
Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Fotal Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income from:
Donations and caplital grants 3 11 - 674 685 286
Transfer from local authority on
conversion 3&32 937 (1,753) 11,129 10,313 -
Charitable activities:
- Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 - 20,922 - 20,922 14,232
Other trading activities 5 22 - - 22 7
Investment income 6 10 - - 10 -
Total 980 19,169 11,803 31,952 14,525
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 9 - - 9 5
Charitable activities:
impairment 8 &13 - - - - 2,511
- Academy trust's educational
operations 7 - 21178 1,448 22,626 16,661
Total 9 21,178 1,448 22,635 19,177
Net income/(expenditure) 971 (2,009) 10,355 9,317 {4,652)
Transfers between funds 18 (270) 139 131 - -
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gain on defined benefit
pension schemes 29 - 6,514 6,514 11,245
Net movement in funds 701 4,644 10,486 15,831 6,593
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 18 631 (6,029) 11,888 6,490 (103)
Total funds carried forward 18 1,332 {1,385) 22,374 A &

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Note 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 22,428 11,871
22,428 11,871
Current assets
Debtors 15 639 609
Cash at bank and in hand 5,131 2,785
5,770 3,394
Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 16 {2,543) {1,164)
Net current assets 3,227 2,230
Total assets less current liabilities 25,655 14,101
Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year 17 (27) (36)
Net assets excluding pension liability 25,628 14,065
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 29 (3,307) (7,575)
Total net assets 22,321 6,490
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
- Fixed asset fund 18 22,374 11,888
- Restricted income fund 18 1,922 1,546
- Pension reserve 18 {3,307) (7,575)
Total restricted funds 20,989 5,859
Unrestricted income fund 18 1,332 631
Total unrestricted funds 1,332 631
Total Funds 22,321 6,490

The financial statements on pages 30 to 52 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on
13 December 2023 and signed on their behalf by:

J Davey
Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes 2023 2022

£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 22 2,547 993
Cash flows from investing activities 23 (192) (201)
Cash flows from financing activities 24 (9) (9)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period 2,346 783
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 25 2,785 2,002
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 25 5131 2,785
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1

Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities :
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) {Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 and has not presented its own Statement of Financial Activities in these financial statements.

Thrive Education Partnership meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Transfer of State Maintained School to a Multi Academy Trust
The transfer of state maintained schools to Thrive Education Partnership involved the transfer of
identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for nil consideration. The substance of
the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.
The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from the Local Authority to an academy trust have
been valued at their fair value, The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. Their
fair value is in accordance with the accounting policies set out for Thrive Education Partnership. The
amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding
net amount recognised as a net gainfloss in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed as
donations transferred from local authority on conversion. Further details of the transactions are set out
in note 32.
Going Concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of
at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded
that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.
Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt
is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
e Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income Is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitliement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an entitement when receivable and are not
deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant
are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)
e Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount
can be reliably measured.

e Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
¢ Transfer of existing academies into the trust
Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the trust, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for
the transfer of an existing academy into the trust within 'lncome from Donations and Capital Grants'
to the net assets acquired.
Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to
a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs invoived
in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that
activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not
attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the
use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

¢ Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

# Charitable Activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust’s educational operations, including support costs and

costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable
Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably
by the Group; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with
whom the funds are deposited.
Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentiaily exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.
Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
govemment or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such
assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

1

Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Tangible Fixed Assets (Cont'd)

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down
to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for
other assets are:

Long term leasehold land 125 years
Long term leasehold property 5-10%
Fumiture and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value
of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.

Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Group
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

Financial instruments
The trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assefs - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts
due to the Academy Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy Trust's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Operating leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight

line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

1

Statement of Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
('TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. The TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between
employers. Consequently the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes
and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a multi funded employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/{expenditure) are the
current service costs and the costs of the scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying
the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual
return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Agency Arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 Bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. Payments
received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are exciuded from the Statement of
Financial Activities as the Academy Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the
funds.

The Academy Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administrative costs and this is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds received, paid and any balances held at
the year end are disclosed in note 31.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees. Restricted fixed asset funds
are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset
acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/ Department for
Education.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom egual the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

1

Statement of Accounting Policies {cont'd)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions {cont'd)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their economic useful lives taking into account residual
values where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and
may vary depending on a number of factors.

Critical areas of judgement

The classification of expenditure between restricted and unrestricted funds is considered a critical area
of judgement as certain expenditure can be applied to both funds. Where this is the case and the
amounts in question are considered material, the expenditure is apportioned to both funding streams on
an appropriate basis.

The Academy Trust obtains use of fixed assets as a lessee. The classification of such leases as
operating or finance lease requires the Academy Trust to determine, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, whether it retains or acquires the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires an asset and liability
to be recognised in the Balance Sheet.

GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the academy trust was not subject to a limit on

the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2023 (See note 18).

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS Unrestricted Restricted 2023 2022

Funds Funds Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Donations 1 - 11 26

Local authority capital grant - 52 52 228

Devolved formula capital - ESFA - 57 57 . 32
Condition improvement fund - ESFA - 482 482 .
Other ESFA capital grant - 83 83 -

Transfer from local athority on conversion (note 32):
- Land and buildings

11,0856 11,085 .

- Capital funds - 44 44 -

- Revenue funds 937 - 937 -

- LGPS pension deficit transferred - (1,753) (1,753) -
948 10,050 10,998 286

The income from donations and capital grants was £10,998,000 {2022 : £286,000) of which £948,000
(2022 : £26,000) was unrestricted, (£1,753,000) (2022 : £Nil) restricted and £11,803,000 {2022 :
£260,000) restricted fixed assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted Restricted 2023 2022
Funds Funds Total Total
DfE/ESFA grants £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (note 2) - 7,319 7,319 5,261
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium grant - 367 367 247
Teachers pay grant - 131 131 101
Teachers pension grant - 362 362 280
PE & sports grant - 40 40 34
UIFSM - 33 33 20
Emergency school improvement fund - 291 291 74
NQT time off - 28 28 6
Careers Framework ~ - - 5
Conversion grant - 25 25 -
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 1 1 2
- 8,597 8,597 6,096
Other Government grants
Special Needs Grant - LA - 11,970 11,970 8,043
Pupil premium - LA 20 20 17
Other LA Grants - 18 18 26
- 12,008 12,008 8,086
COVID-19 ESFA additional funding
Covid recovery premium - 252 252 66
- 252 252 66
Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations
Non government revenue income - 17 17 4
Pupil catering income - 48 48 46
- 65 65 50

- 20,922 20,922 14,232

The income from funding for the academy trust educational operations was £20,922,000 (2022 :
£14,232,000) of which £Nil {2022 : £4,000) was unrestricted and £20,922.000 (2022 : £14,228,000)
restricted.
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5 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted 2023 2022
Funds Funds Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Other Income 22 - 22 7
22 - 22 7
The income from the academy trusts's other trading activities was unrestricted for both 2023 and 2022.
6 INVESTMENT INCOME Unrestricted Restricted 2023 2022
Funds Funds Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank interest received 10 - 10 -
10 - 10 -

The income from the academy trusts's other investment income was unrestricted for both 2023 and
2022.

7 EXPENDITURE | Non Pay Expenditure | 2023 2022
Staff Costs Premises Other Costs Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure on raising funds
- Allocated support costs - - 9 9 5
Academy’s educational operations
- Direct costs 14,857 - 966 15,823 10,572
- Allocated support costs 3,001 2,906 896 6,803 8,600
17,858 2,906 1,862 22,626 19,172
17,858 2,906 1,871 22,635 19177

The expenditure was £22,635,000 (2022 : £19,177,000) of which £9,000 (2022 : £5,000) was
unrestricted, £21,178,000 (2022 : £15,411,000) restricted and £1,448,000 (2022 : £3,761,000)
restricted fixed assets.

{Incoming)/outgoing resources for the year include: Total Total
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Operating leases rentals 25 35
Depreciation 1,448 1,250
Impairment (note 13) - 2,511

Fees payable to auditor for:
Audit 26 17
Other services 11 8
8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Direct costs - educational operations 15,823 10,572
Support costs - educational operations 6,803 8,600
22,626 19,172

Analysis of Support Costs
Staff costs 3,001 3,566
Depreciation 1,448 1,250
Impairment (note 13) - 2,511
Technology costs 184 29
Premises costs 1,458 742
Other support costs 449 284
Governance costs 240 138
Legal conversion costs 17 -
Legal & Professional 6 10

6,803 8,600
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9 STAFF Total Total
a Staff costs 2023 2022
Staff costs during the year were: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 12,062 8,681
Social security costs 1,109 780
Pension costs 2,958 3,605
16,129 13,066

Agency staff costs 1,729 531
Staff restructuring costs - -

Severance payments - -
Other restructuring costs -

17,858 _ 13,597
b Staff severance contractual payments

The academy trust made no severance payments in the current and prior years.

¢ Special staff severance non contractual payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are speciai severance payments totalling £Nil (2022 - £Nil).
Individually, the payments were £Nil.

d Staff numbers
The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the multi academy
trust during the year ended 31 August 2023 expressed as whole persons was as follows:

Total Total
2023 2022
Charitable Activities No. No.
Teachers 88 67
Administration and support - including Teaching Assistants 409 327
Management 18 15

515 409

e Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 5 4
£70,001 - £80,000 4 2
£80,001 - £90,000 - 1
£90,001 - £100,000 4 3
£120,001 - £130,000 1 1

f Key management personnel
The key management of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 3. The total amount of employee benefits (including empioyer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the academy trust was £2,021,741 (2022: £1,605,042).
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10 CENTRAL SERVICES

1

Thrive Education Partnership has provided the following central services to its academies during the year
e human resources; + educational support services;

o financial services; e other governance related expenditure.

¢ legal services;

There is a contribution to the budgeted running costs of the MAT based upon the size of the individual
schools, but taking into account any specific needs of the individual schools.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2023 2022

£'000 £000
Calthorpe Teaching Academy 708 735
Kingsbury Academy 182 151
The Warwickshire Academy 120 74
Corley Academy 93 -
Mary Elliot Academy 128 -

1,231 960

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The Chief Executive Officer received remuneration in respect of her contract of
services as CEO and not in respect of her services as trustee. Other trustees did not receive any
payments. other than expenses, from the Academy Trust in respect of their role as trustees. The value
of trustees’ remuneration and other remuneration was as follows:

l 2023 || 2022 |
R Chapman, Principal and Accounting Officer
Remuneration £120,000 - £125,000:125,000 - £130,000
Employers pension contribution £25,000 - £30,000 £30,000 - £35,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £6,634 (2022: £3,270)
were reimbursed or paid directly to one (2022:0ne) trustee.

12 TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement {RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £5,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

13 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS Assets Long Term

Under Leasehold Furniture & Computer Motor

Construction Property Equipment Equipment Vehicles Total
Cost £'000 £°'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 September 2022 - 19,1563 1,520 523 175 21,3M
Transfer in from local authority - 11,085 - - - 11,085
Additions 590 272 58 - - 920
Reclassification {590) 590 - - - -
At 31 August 2023 - 31,100 1,578 523 175 33,376
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 - 7,819 1,000 512 169 9,500
Charged in year - 1,401 39 5 3 1,448
Reclassification (34) 34 - - -
At 31 August 2023 - 9,186 1,073 517 172 10,948
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 - 21,914 505 6 3 22,428
At 31 August 2022 - 11,334 520 11 6 11,871
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13

14

15

16

17

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS {(cont'd)

The land and buildings that were transferred into the trust previously were independentiy valued on 1
April 2020 by DVS Property Specialists. The basis of the valuation was depreciated replacement cost
and the comparative method of valuation for the non-specialised assets.

The land and buildings that were transferred into the trust in the current year were independently valued
on 1 November 2022 and 1 April 2023 by Eddisons, at the date the schools transferred into the Trust.
The basis of the valuation was depreciated replacement cost and the comparative method of valuation
for the non-specialised assets. |

The land and buildings occupied by The Warwickshire Academy are occupied under license and are
excluded from Tangible Fixed Assets until a lease is signed with the transferring local authority, Coventry
City Council.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

The Academy Trust owned 100% of the issued share capital of Calthorpe Academy Transport Services
Limited, a private limited company, limited by shares, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled
in England. Its registered office was Darwin Street, Highgate, Birmingham, B12 OTP and its principal
activity was the provision of transport services. The company was dormant during the previous year and
was dissolved on 15 February 2022.

DEBTORS 2023 2022
Total Total
£000 £'000

Trade debtors 30 96

VAT recoverable 206 194

Prepayments and accrued income 403 319

639 609

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 2023 2022
Total Total
£000 £000

Salix loan 9 9

Trade creditors 760 267

Other taxation and social security 589 210

Other creditors 125 207

Accruals 1,046 393

Deferred income 14 78

2,543 1,164

Deferred Income

Deferred income at 1 78 8
Resources deferred in the year 14 78
Amounts released from (78) (8)
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 14 78

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance for 2023/24 for universal
infant free school meals £14,000 (2022: £12,000) and local authority top-up funding £Nil (2022:
£67,000).

A Salix loan of £36,000 (2022: £45,000) from the ESFA has been provided over 8 years and is
repayable by 31 March 2027. For details of the individual loan see note 17.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR 2023 2022
Total Total
£'000 £'000

Salix loan 27 36

The loan represents the amount outstanding from Salix Finance which is provided at 0% interest and is
repayable in equal instalments over 8 years.
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18 FUNDS
The income funds of the academy comprise the following balances of grants to be applied for specific

purposes:

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Incoming Resources Losses & 31 August
2022 Resources Expended Transfers 2023
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (note I) - 7,319 {7,.319) - -
Emergency school improvement fund - 291 (291) - -
Pupil premium grant (note iv) - 367 (367) - -
UIFSM (note v) - 33 (33) - -
Teachers pay grant (note v) - 131 (131) - -
Teachers pension grant (note v) - 362 (362) - -
PE and sports grant (note v) - 40 (40) - -
Pupil catering income - 48 (48) - -
Recovery Premium (note v) - 252 (252) - -
NQT time off (note v) . 28 (28) - -
Non government revenhue income - 17 (17) - .
Conversion grant (note v) - 25 (25) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants (note v) - 1 (1) - -
Special needs grants LA (note ii) 1,546 11,970 (11,733) 139 1,922
Pupil premium grant LA (note ii) - 20 (20) - -
Other grants LA (note ii) - 18 18 - -
1.546 20,922 " 138 — 1927
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion (note Xxiii) 7.536 11,129 (869) - 17,796
DfE/ESFA capital grants (note x) 948 622 {98) - 1,472
Land and building donation (note xiii) 2,107 52 (236) - 1,923
Donated fixed assets 96 - (13) - 83
Assets purchased from academy funds (note xi) 1,201 - (232) 131 1,100
11,888 11,803 (1,448) 131 22,374
Restricted pension scheme liabllity
Pension reserve {7,575) {1,753) {493) 6,514 (3,307)
(7,575) {1,753) {493) 6,514 (3,307)
Total restricted funds 5,859 30,972 (22,626) 6,784 20,989
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note xif) 631 43 (9) (47) 618
LA surplus transferred in - 937 - (223) 714
631 980 (9) (270) 1,332
Total funds 6,490 31,952 (22,635) 6,514 22,321
Notes

i) General annual grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the academy. Under the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG
that it would carry forward at 31 August 2023. (see note 2)

i) The local authority grant is utilised to meet the special needs of pupils.

iv) Pupil premium are funds paid to disadvantaged pupils.
v) Other grants, including rates relief and universal free school meals awarded by the ESFA and for specific
purposes.
vi) Other grants are used to support apprenticeships at the academy.
vii) School fund are legacy funds from contributions and donations received from parents and other
organisations which are used to support the academy trust's activities.
x) Devolved formula capital grants received from the ESFA to support capital spend at the academy.
xi} Capital expenditure transfer from academy funds totalled £131,000 (2022: £218,000).
xii) Unrestricted funds include receipts from the trust's trading activities is spent at the discretion of the trustees.
xiii) Leasehold land and buildings has also been donated by Birmingham City Council, Walsall Metropolitan
Borough Council and Coventry City Council on 125 year peppercom lease.
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18 FUNDS (cont'd)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as foliows:

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Incoming Resources Losses & 31 August
2021 Resources Expended Transfers 2022
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (note i) - 5,261 (5,261) - -
Emergency school improvement fund - 74 (74) - -
Pupil premium grant (note iv) - 247 (247) - -
UIFSM (note v) - 20 (20) E -
Teachers pay grant (note v) - 101 {101) - -
Teachers pension grant (note v) - 280 (280) - -
PE and sports grant (note v) - 34 (34) - -
Pupil catering income - 46 {46) - -
Recovery Premium (note v) - 66 {66) - -
NQT time off (note v) - 6 {6) - -
Careers Framework (note v) - 5 {5) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants (note v) . 2 (2) - -
Special needs grants LA (note ii} 1,260 8,043 (7,514} (243) 1,546
Pupil premium grant LA (note ii) - 17 (17) - -
Other grants LA (note i) - 26 83 57 -
1,260 14228 {1 3,455; (186) 1,546
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 10,554 - (3,018) - 7,536
DfE/ESFA capital grants (note x) 1,010 32 (94) 948
BCC land and building donation (note xiii) 2,191 228 (255) (57) 2,107
Donated fixed assets 124 - (28) - 26
Assets purchased from academy funds (note xi) 1,292 - (366) 275 1,201
15,171 260 (3,761) 218 11,888
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve {17,165) - (1,655) 11,245 (7,575)
{17,165) - (1,655) 11,245 (7,575)
Total restricted funds (734) 14,488 (19,172) 11,277 5,859
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note xii) 631 37 (5) (32) 631
631 37 (5) (32} 631
Total funds — (103) 14,525 (19,177} . — 5,490
2023 2022
TOTAL FUNDS ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY Total Total
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were aliocated as follows: £'000 £'000
Calthorpe Teaching Academy 1,626 1,158
Kingsbury Academy (30) (32)
The Warwickshire Academy (46) 181
Corley Academy 360 -
Mary Elliot Academy 356 -
Central services 089 870
— 3204 2177
Restricted fixed assets fund 22,374 11,888
Pension reserve (3,307) (7,575)
—19.067 4313
Total 22,321 6,490

The Warwickshire Academy is carrying a net deficit of £46,000 (2022: net surplus £181,000). The 2022-23
deficit was caused by one-off impacts not forecast in 2023-24 and with the increase in pupil numbers and
income economies of scale will found.

Kingsbhury Academy is carrying a net deficit of £30,000 (2022: £32,000). The school is expected to return to
an in year surplus in 2023-24 by maintaining cumrent staffing level whiist reducing non-pay items and
maximising additional income.



THRIVE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP

45

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

18

19

20

FUNDS (cont'd)
Teaching & Other
Educational Other Costs
Support Staff Support Staff Educational (excluding 2023 2022
Costs Costs Supplies Dep'n) Total Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Calthorpe Teaching
Academy 8,220 1,198 515 956 10,889 11,406
Kingsbury Academy 1,713 246 85 263 2,307 2178
The Warwickshire
Academy 1,071 177 122 339 1,709 788
Corley Academy 2,014 279 142 216 2,651 -
Mary Elliot Academy 1,291 211 20 213 1,735 -
Central services 548 890 82 376 1,896 1,044
Academy Trust 14,857 3,001 966 2,363 21,187 15,416
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by: Fixed
Penslon General Assels
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restrict'd
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 22,428 22,428
Current assets 1,332 - 4,492 (54) 5,770
Current liabilities - - (2,543) - (2,543)
Non-current liabilties - - (27) - (27)
Pension scheme liability - (3,307) - - {3,307)
1,332 (3,307) 1,922 22,374 22321
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by: Fixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restrict'd
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 11,871 11,871
Current assets 631 - 2,746 17 3,394
Current liabilities - - (1,164) - (1,164)
Non-current liabilties - (36) - (36)
Pension scheme liability - {7.575) - - (7,575)
631 (7,575) 1,546 11,888 6,490
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

197 -
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21

22

23

24

25

26

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which expire:

- Within one year
- Between one and five years
- After five years

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH FLOW

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation {note 13)

impairment (note 13)

Fixed Assets donation from local authority (note 33)
LGPS pension deficit transfer (note 33)

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (note 3)

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 29)

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 29)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors
increase in creditors
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

Capital grants from sponsors and others
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of borrowing
Net cash used in financing activities

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Cash at bank

Loans within one year
L.oans within more than one year

2023 2022

Total Total

£'000 £'000

1 18

7 4

18 22

2023 2022

£'000 £000

9,317 (4,652)

1,448 4,250

- 2,511

{11,085) -

1,753 -

(718) (260)

(10) H

128 1,354

365 301

(30) 355

1,379 134

2,547 993

2023 2022

£'000 £000

10 -

(920) (461)

674 260

44 .

(192) (201)

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

(9) (9)

(9) (9)

At 31 At 31

2022 2022

£'000 £'000

5,131 2,785

5,131 2,785

At 31

At 1 September Cash Aug

2022 Flows 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000

2,785 2,346 5,131

2,785 2,346 5,131

) - (9)

(36) 9 (27)
2,337

2,740
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27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

28

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of
any asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-
invest the proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the
proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the
Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the
Academy serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by
reference to:

a} the value at that time of the Academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.

MEMBERS’ LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Warwickshire Pension Fund. Both are
defined multi employer benefit schemes.

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2023 was £2,958,000 (2022 :
£3,605,000) of which £1,126,000 (2022 : £759,000) relates to the TPS and £1,832,000 (2022 :

£2,846,000) relates to the LGPS.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £302,965 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 :
£135,760) and are included within other creditors

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers®’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions {(Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carmried
out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 30
Qctober 2023. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

e employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
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29 PENSION AND SIMILLAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

Local Government Pension Scheme {cont'd)

e total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million

e the SCAPE discount rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The
current SCAPE rate is 1.7% above the rate of CPl, and is based on the Office for Budget
Responsibility's forecast for long-term GDP growth

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2027.
The employers costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,126,000 (2022: £759,000).
A copy of the valuation report and stipporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has
set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee administered
funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £2,192,000 (2022:
£3,096,000) of which employer's contributions totalled £1,339,000 (2022: £1,191,000) and employees
contributions totalled £360,000 (2022: £250,000). The agreed contributions for future years for
employers are 20.2% to 26.3% (2022: 18.1%) for employers and 5.5% to 12.5% (2022 :5.5% to
12.5%) for employees.

As described in note 29 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were
the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees
who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The major assumptions used by the actuary were: At 31 At 31

August August

% per % per

annum annum

Discount rate 5.2% 4.3%

Salary increases 4.0% 4.0%

Pension increases 3.0% 3.1%

Sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as
follows:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Discount rate decreased by 0.1% per annum 449 434

Salary increased rate by + 0.1% 48 89

Pension increased by CPI rate 0.1% 408 348
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29 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont’d)

Local Government Pension Scheme (cont'd)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Longevity at age 65 retiring today years yoears
- Men 19.5 21.3
- Women 23.6 23.8
Longevity at age 65 retiring in 20 years
- Men 21.5 22.8
- Women 24.8 23.6
Fair value Fair value
at 31 at 31
August August
The Academy Trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were: 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Equity instruments 9,072 6,418
Debt instruments 2,806 2,013
Property 940 767
Cash/liquidity 533 383
Total market value of assets 13,351 9,581
Present value of scheme liabilities
- Funded (13,351) (9,581)
- Unfunded (3,307) (7,575)
Total liabilities {16,658) (17,156)
Deficit in the scheme !3!307! {7,575)

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a deficit of £72,000 (2022: deficit £280,000).
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Current service cost 1,467 2,545
Interest income (502) (156)
Interest cost 867 457
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 1:832 2,846

2023 2022
Movement In deficit during the year £'000 £'000
Balance brought forward at 1 September 7,575 17,165
Movement in year:
Transfer on conversion 1,753 -
Current service cost 1,467 2,545
Employer contributions {1,339) (1,191)
Expected return on scheme assets (502) (156)
Interest cost 867 457
Actuarial gain (6,514) (11,245)
Deficit In the scheme at 31 August 3,307 7,575
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29

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Local Government Pension Scheme (cont'd)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as foliows:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Scheme liabilities at 1 September 17,156 25,724
Transfer on conversion 4,325 -
Current service cost 1,467 2,545
interest cost 867 457
Contributions by scheme participants 360 250
Actuarial gain (7,353) (11,681)
Benefits paid (164) (139)
Fair value of scheme liabilities at 31 August 16,658 17,156
Changes in the fair value of academy’'s share of scheme assets:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 September 9,581 8,559
Transfer on conversion 2,572 -
Expected return cn scheme assets 502 156
Contributions by employer 1,339 1,191
Contributions by scheme participants 360 250
Actuarial loss (839) (436)
Benefits paid (164) (139)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 13,351 9,581

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2024 is £1,585,000 (2023
: £1,176,000).

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

31

Owing to the nature of the academy trust's operations and the composition of the board of trustees
being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take
place with organisations in which a member of the board of trustees may have an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions. During the year ended 31 August 2023 there were no such transactions.

In entering into the transactions the trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022.

Expenditure related party transactions

During the year, an amount of £Nil (2022: £475) was paid to Birmingham Education Partnership for
membership. P Smart, a Trustee, is also a director of Birmingham Education Partnership Limited. No
amounts were outstanding at the year end (2022; £Nil).

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds on behalf of the ESFA. In the accounting period
ended 31 August 2023, the Trust received £17,229 (2022: £8,529), disbursed £8,623 (2022: £11,529)
and repaid £Nil (2022: £17,225) from the fund. An amount of £8,608 (2022: £Nil) is included in other
creditors relating to the undistributed funds that are repayable to the ESFA.

The Academy Trust distributes vulnerable bursary funds on behalf of the ESFA. In the accounting
period ended 31 August 2023, the Trust received £8,400 (2022: £7,200), disbursed £3,637 (2022:
£3,600) from the fund. An amount of £8,363 (2022: £3,600) is included in other creditors relating to the
undistributed funds that are repayable to the ESFA.
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32 CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

Corley Academy

On 1 November 2022 Corley Academy converted to Academy status under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Thrive Education Partnership from
Warwickshire County Council for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in subsistence a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain/(loss) in the
Statement of Financial Activities as donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fixed Funds

Funds Asset
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Leasehold land and buildings - - 4,715 4,715
Budget surplus on LA funds 447 - - 447
LGPS pension deficit - (877) - (877)
Net assets/(liabilities) 447 (877) 4,715 4,285

The above net assets/(liabilities) include £447,000 that were transferred as cash.

Mary Elliot Academy

On 1 April 2023 Mary Elliot Academy converted to Academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Thrive Education Partnership from
Walsall Metroplolitan Borough Council for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in subsistence a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain/(loss) in the
Statement of Financial Activities as donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Funds General Fixed Funds

Funds Asset
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Leasehold land and buildings - - 6,370 6,370
Budget surplus on LA funds 490 - 44 534
LGPS pension deficit - (876) - (876)
Net assets/(liabilities) 490 {876) 6,414 6,028

The above net assets/(liabilities) include £534,000 that were transferred as cash.
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32 CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST (cont'd)
The Warwickshire Academy
On 1 March 2022 The Warwickshire Academy converted to Academy status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and land and buildings were transferred to the Thrive Education
Partnership Trust from Coventry City Council for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in subsistence a gift. As The
Warwickshire Academy Is a new academy there are no assets and liabilities except for the land and
buildings which are occupied under license, until a lease agreement is signed with Coventry City
Council. Once a lease agreement is signed with Coventry City Council and a valuation obtained the
land and buildings will be recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a
corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain/(loss) in the Statement of Financial Activities as
donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

33 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no material adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheet date.



